National Core Indicators®--Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 2020-21 In-Person Survey (IPS) Report

Appendix A: Rules for Recoding and Collapsing Data



Table of Contents

Collapsing Data	iii
Demographics	1
Choice and Decision-Making	5
Work	7
Self-Directed Services	10
Community Inclusion, Participation and Leisure	12
Relationships	14
Satisfaction	17
Service Coordination	19
Access	22
Health	23
Medication	25
Wellness	26
Rights and Respect	27
Safety	30

Collapsing Data

For many of the indicators in this report, only "yes" responses are analyzed and reported for state to state comparisons and significance testing. However, there are several indicators for which the "yes" response was collapsed with the middle response (for example, a "sometimes" response, or a "some input" response) to form the "yes" indicator category which was then analyzed and subsequently reported. For example, for choice indicators, responses "person chose" and "person had some input" were collapsed into one "yes, person chose" category. For those indicators, the two responses were considered to be equally indicative of a positive outcome.

The tables below describe the variables and response options used to recode and collapse data included in this report. Tables are separated by NCI-IDD Domain.

Please note, an expanded guide for variable reporting (including information on how data are filtered) is available upon request through HSRI. Please email Dorothy at dhiersteiner@hsri.org for more info.

Demographics

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Residential designation	METROCAT Information based on zipcode using residential designation defined by the USDA: https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/rural-urban-commuting-area-codes.aspx	'Don't Know' shown	No
Age (Variable used for risk adjustment)	AGE Survey asks for month and year of birth. Age calculated.	n/a	No
Age group	Age_categ Categorical variable created for the following categories: 18 thru 22 23 thru 34 35 thru 54 55 thru 74 75 and above. Unknown	n/a	No
Gender	GENDER	n/a	No
Marital Status	MARSTAT	'Don't Know' shown	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Race	RACE	'Don't Know' shown	No
	Categorical variable created using variables:		
	RACE15_AMERIN		
	RACE15_ASIAN		
	RACE15_BLACK		
	RACE15_HAWAII		
	RACE15_WHITE		
	RACE15_LATINO		
	RACE15_OTHER		
	RACE15_DK		
	"Two or more races" variable created by identifying the cases that have at least two races reported		
Is this person a parent?	PARENT15_1	n/a	No
	PARENT15_2		
	PARENT15_3		
	PARENT15_99		
If the person has children under 18 years of age, does the child or children live with the person?	PARENT15_LIVE	'Don't Know' shown	
Type of Residence	TYPEHOME16	'Don't Know' shown	No
Length of time at current residence	RESIDLEN17	'Don't Know' shown	No
Person's residence owned or controlled by provider agency	CONTPROV16	'Don't Know' shown	No
Person named on lease	LEASE16	'Don't Know' shown	No
Person owns home	OWNHOME15	'Don't Know' shown	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has ID diagnosis	DIAGMR	'Don't Know' shown	No
Level of ID (Variable used for risk adjustment)	LEVELMR08	Unknown and unspecified shown; filtered for those with a diagnosis of ID (DIAGMR=2)	No
Other Disabilities	DXMIPDMD13 DXMIPDAD13 DXMIPDBC13 DXMIPDPD13 DXMIPDOTH13 DXAUTISM0813 DXCP13 DXB113 DXNEURO13 DXCHEMDP13 DXDOWN0813 PRWISYND13 DXFETALALCH15 DXVISION15 DXHEARING15 DXNONE13	'Don't Know' included in denominators	No
Health Conditions	HCCARVAS HCDIAB HCCANCER HCHIBP HCHICHL HCDYSPH15 HCPRESULC HCALZHEIM15 HCORALDENTAL16 HCSLEEPAPNEA16 HCOTHER	'Don't Know' included in denominators	No
Preferred Means of Communication	EXPRESS15	'Don't Know' shown	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Primary Language	LANGUAGE		No
Mobility (Variable used for risk adjustment)	MOBILITY08	'Don't Know' shown	No
Support Needed to Manage Self Injurious Behavior (Variable used for risk adjustment)	SELFINJ08	'Don't Know' shown	No
Support Needed to Manage Disruptive Behavior (Variable used for risk adjustment)	DISBEH08	'Don't Know' shown	No
Support Needed to Manage Destructive Behavior (Variable used for risk adjustment)	UNCPBEH08	'Don't Know' shown	No
Level of Guardianship	LGLSTAT15	'Don't Know' shown	No
Guardian's Relationship to Person	GUARDRELAT17	'Don't Know' shown	No
Funding	FUNDING20_1 FUNDING20_2 FUNDING20_3 FUNDING20_4 FUNDING20_5 FUNDING20_99	n/a	No
Medicare	MEDICARE15	'Don't Know' shown	No
Amount of support	AMTSUPP	'Don't Know' shown	No

Choice and Decision-Making

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Chose or had some input in choosing where they live if not living in the family home (Adjusted Variable)	CHOSHOME2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) and for residence type (typehome16 not equal to 5 (parent or relative's home) Risk adjusted	No
Chose or had some input in choosing their housemates if not living in the family home, or chose to live alone (Adjusted Variable)	HOUSEMATES2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) and for residence type (typehome16 not equal to 5 (parent or relative's home) Risk adjusted	No
Chose or had some help in choosing where they work (Adjusted Variable) * reported for those who were determined to have a paid community job from Background section	CHOSJOB2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) and for whether person has a paid community job. Risk adjusted	No
Chose or had some input in choosing day program or workshop (Adjusted Variable)	CHOOSDAY2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) Risk adjusted	No
Chooses or has help deciding their daily schedule (Adjusted Variable)	SCHEDULE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) Risk adjusted	No
Has enough choice in daily schedule (Adjusted Variable)	PCP_CHOICE_SCHEDULE2	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) Risk adjusted	No
Chooses or has help deciding how to spend free time (Adjusted Variable)	FREETIME2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had at least some input	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) Risk adjusted	No
Has enough choice in how to spend free time (Adjusted Variable)	PCP_CHOICE_FREETIME2	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0) Risk adjusted	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Chooses or has help deciding what to	CHOOSBUY2	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
buy or has set limits on what to buy with their spending money (Adjusted	Recoded variable in which response options are:	Risk adjusted	
Variable)	0 no1 had at least some input		
Can change their case manager/service	CHANGECM2	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
coordinator if wants to	Recoded variable in which response		
NQF "Can Change Case Manager"	options are:		
	0 no1 had at least some input		
Chose staff or were aware they could	CHOOSSTAF2	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
request to change staff	Recoded variable in which response	Risk adjusted	
NQF "Can Change Case Manager"	options are:		
	 0 no 1 chose staff or were aware they could request to change staff 		
Everyday Choices	The Everyday Choices scale includes choice of: daily schedule, how to spend money, and free time activities.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Life Decisions Scale	The Life Decisions includes choice of:	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
NQF "Life Decisions Scale"	residence, work, day activity, staff, and roommates		

Work

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has a paid job in the community; individual, group and/or in a business that primarily hires people with disabilities	PAIDCOMMJOB_y Variable created indicating those who have at least one of the following marked "yes": 1) PAIDCOMMJOBIND15 2) PAIDCOMMJOBGRP15 3) PAIDCOMMBIZ Creates and makes DK missing (different calculation for OR, WI and MN in 2018-19)	n/a	YES
Type of paid community job	commwork_type_Individual 1= individual job with publicly funded supports and 2= individual job without publicly funded supports commwork_type_Group 1= group job (with or without publicly funded supports) PaidCommBiz18= job in a business that primarily hires people with disabilities Variables created to identify types of paid jobs in the community and whether public support is received for that job.	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	No
Average number of biweekly hours by type of community job	Filter separately for commwork_type_Individual=1 commwork_type_Individual=2 and commwork_type_Group=1 and PAIDCOMMBIZ=2 Then compare means with the variable PCJIHOURS18 or PCJGHOURS18 (for commwork_type_group=1)	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Average hourly wages by type of community job	Filter separately for commwork_type_Individual=1, commwork_type_Individual=2 and commwork_type_Group=1 and PAIDCOMMBIZ=2	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	No
	Then compare means with the variable PCJIWAGES17 or PCJGWAGES17 (for commwork_type_group=1) and PCBIZWAGE (for Paidcommbiz=2)		
Length of employment in current paid community job	Calculated variable using JOBYRS and JOBMOS to equal total months	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	No
Receives paid time off	PDTIMEOFF2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'receives paid time off.	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	YES
Four most common job industries	JOBTYPE	Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	No
Does not have paid community job and would like a job in the community	LIKEAJOB2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Filtered for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =0 and Section I valid (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Has community employment as a goal in their service plan	IEGOAL2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'integrated employment in service plan'.	n/a	YES
Takes classes, training or does something to get a job or do better at current job	TRAINING2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'yes'.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Attends a day program or workshop	HAVEDAYACT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'yes'.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Volunteers	VOLUNT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'yes'.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Self-Directed Services

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Using a self-directed supports option	SELFDRCT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'yes'.	n/a	No
People who make decisions or have input in making decisions for how budget for services is used	WHOBUDDEC2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0)and SELFDRCT2=1	No
Hires or manages staff (among those using a self-direction option	HIRESTAFF2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes 0 No, maybe	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1	No
Can make changes to individual budget/services if needed	CHANGBUDG2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes 0 No, maybe	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1	No
Has enough help deciding how to use their individual budget/services	ENUFHELP2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes, have enough help 0 No, want more help or maybe, not sure.	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1	No
Gets information about how much money is left in budget/services	ENUFINFO2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 Yes • 0 No, maybe, not sure.	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Information about budget/services is easy to understand	INFOUNDERST2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 Yes • 0 No, maybe, not sure.	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1 and ENUFINFO15=2 or ENUFINFO15=3	No
Frequency with which the person gets information about budget/services	HOWOFTENINFO16	Filtered for Section 2 (INVL_CR2_15=0) and SELFDRCT2=1	No

Community Inclusion, Participation and Leisure

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Able to go out and do the things like to do in the community	GOOUT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Gets to go out and do the things likes to do in the community as often as wants to	GOOUTENOUGH2 Recoded variable in which response options are: O No 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Has enough things to do when at home	HOMETODO2 Recoded variable in which response options are: O Not enough, in the middle 1 Yes	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Went out shopping at least once in the past month	SHOPPING15_2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, 0 times • 1 at least once in past month.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Went out on errands at least once in the past month	ERRANDS15_2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, 0 times • 1 at least once in past month.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Went out for entertainment at least once in the past month	ENTERTAN15_2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, 0 times • 1 at least once in past month.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Went out to a restaurant or coffee shop at least once in the past month	EATOUT15_2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, 0 times • 1 at least once in past month.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Went out to religious service or spiritual practice at least once in the past month	RELIGION15_2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, 0 times • 1 at least once in past month.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Participated as a member in community group	Commact2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 yes	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Went on vacation in the past year	VACATION2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 yes	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Gets help to learn new things NQF "Lifelong Learning"	PCP_LEARN2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, maybe	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No
	• 1 yes		

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Community Inclusion Scale	Comm_incl_scale	Filtered for Section II	No
NQF Community Inclusion Scale		(INVL_CR2_15=0)	
	USE ALL.		
	COMPUTE		
	Comm_incl_scale=MEAN(SHOPPING15_2,		
	ERRANDS15_2, ENTERTAIN15_2,		
	EATOUT15_2).		
	EXECUTE.		
	VARIABLE LABELS Comm_incl_scale 'Community inclusion Scale'.		

Relationships

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has friends who are not staff or family members	HASFRNDS2	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
NQF "Has Friends"	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	0 no, only staff or family		
	1 yes, not staff or family.		
Has best friend (may be staff or family)	BESTFRIEND2	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	0 No, does not have a best friend		
	1 Yes, has a best friend.		
Can see or communicate with their family when they	SEEFAMLY2	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0) and only	YES
want (among those who do not live in the family home)	Recoded variable in which response options are:	analyzed for people not living with parent/family	
	0 no, sometimes		
	1 yes, whenever wants to, or chooses not to see family.		

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has friends (may be staff or family) and can see their friends when they want	SEEFRNDS2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 No, often unable to see friends, Sometimes cannot see friends when wants	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Wants help to meet or keep in contact with friends	1 Yes. FRNDSHELP2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 No, 1 Yes, maybe.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Reasons why can't see friends	WHYSEEFRNDSLOT16 WHYSEEFRNDSLOS16 WHYSEEFRNDSRULES16 WHYSEEFRNDSCOST16 WHYSEEFRNDSTIME16 WHYSEEFRNDSOTH16 WHYSEEFRNDS16_SPECIFY	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0) and SEEFRNDS2=0	No
Has other ways of talking, chatting, or communicating with friends when cannot see them	FRNDSCOMM2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 No, Sometimes 1 Yes	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Can go on a date or is married or living with partner	CANDATE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 No, Yes but with restrictions 1 Yes or is married living with partner	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Often feels lonely	LONELY2_15 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 no, not often, or sometimes 1 yes, often.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Satisfaction

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Likes home or where lives	LIKEHOME2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Reasons doesn't like home	DONTLIKE15_1 DONTLIKE15_2 DONTLIKE15_3 DONTLIKE15_4 DONTLIKE15_5 DONTLIKE15_6 DONTLIKE15_7 DONTLIKE15_10 DONTLIKE15_11 DONTLIKE15_11 DONTLIKE15_OTHER DONTLIKE15_99	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No
Wants to live somewhere else	HOMEELSE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Has a paid job in the community and likes job	LIKEJOB2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0) and for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	YES
Has a paid job in the community and wants to work somewhere else	JOBELSE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, in-between • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0) and for PAIDCOMMJOB_y =1	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Attends a day program or workshop and wants to go more, less, or the same amount of time	LESSDAYACT16	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0) and havedayact2 =1	No
Person wants to go out shopping more, less or the same amount as last month	PCP_SHOPPING	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Person wants to go out for entertainment more, less or the same amount as last month	PCP_ENTERTAIN	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Person wants to go out to a restaurant or coffee shop more, less or the same amount as last month	PCP_EATOUT	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Person wants to go out to a religious service or spiritual practice more, less or the same amount as last month	PCP_RELIG	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Person wants to be a part of more community groups	PCP_COMM_GROUP	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Services and Supports help person live a good life	GOODLIFE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, in between • 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Service Coordination

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has met or spoken with case manager/service coordinator	KNOWSCM2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 maybe, no • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Case manager/service coordinator asks person what s/he want	ASKIMPOR2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 sometimes, no • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Able to contact case manager/service coordinator when wants	GETSBACK2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, sometimes • 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Took part in last service planning meeting, or had the opportunity but chose not to	MSPLAN2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No • 1 Yes, or had option but chose not to.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Understood what was talked about at last service planning meeting	PLANUNDRSTND2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, in-between • 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Last service planning meeting included people person wanted to be there	PEOPLEWANT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, in-between • 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Person was able to choose services they get as part of service plan	PLANCHOOSE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No, had some input • 1 Yes	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Staff come and leave when they are supposed to	Recoded variable in which response options are: O No, maybe not sure 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Talked about learning new things at least service planning meeting	LRN2 Recoded variable in which response options are O No, maybe 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Remembers what is in the service plan	REMEMBER2 Recoded variable in which response options are O No, maybe 1 Yes	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Service plan includes things that are important to person NQF "Person-Centered Goals"	IMPORTANT2 Recoded variable in which response options are O No, maybe 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Knows whom to talk to if s/he wants to change something about services	CHANGEASKWHOM2 Recoded variable in which response options are O No, maybe 1 Yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has a goal in service plan to increase independence or improve functional skill performance in activities of daily living (ADLs) among those who report they want to learn to do more ADLs on their own NQF "ADL Goal"	PCPADLGOAL2 Recoded variable in which response options are • 1 Has a goal for improving ADL in ISP, if the person wants to do more ADLs independently • 0 no goal, if person wants to do more ADLs independently	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No
Has community employment as a goal in service plan among those who report they want a job NQF "Job Goal"	PCPJOBGOAL2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 having a job related goal in ISP, when person wants a job (and is not currently employed) 0 no goal	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No

Access

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has a way to get places need to go	TRANSPORT2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No almost never, sometimes • 1 Yes, almost always.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Able to get places when wants to do something outside of home	GETPLACES2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No almost never, sometimes • 1 Yes, almost always.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Staff have right training to meet person's needs	STFTRN2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 yes • 0 no, maybe.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Additional services needed	ADDSERVEDSCCM ADDSERVEDRESFAM ADDSERVEDTR ADDSERVEDJOBS13 ADDSERVEDDAY ADDSERVEDEDU ADDSERVEDHC ADDSERVEDHC ADDSERVEDHOUS ADDSERVEDHOUS ADDSERVEDRES ADDSERVEDSOC ADDSERVEDCOMM ADDSERVEDENV ADDSERVEDENV ADDSERVEDBENE ADDSERVEDBENE ADDSERVEDOTH	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No

Health

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Has a primary care doctor or practitioner	PRIMDOC2_woDK Removes DK responses and Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 'doesnt have a primary doc' 1 'has a primary doc'.	n/a	YES
In poor health	Health_poor Recoded variable in which • 0 'excellent or very good' or	INVL_CR2_15=0	YES
Had a complete physical exam in the past year	physexam2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 0 'not in past year' 1 'in past year'.	n/a	YES
Had a dental exam in the past year	dentvis2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'not in past year' • 1 'in past year'.	n/a	YES
Had an eye exam in the past year	EYEEXAM2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'not in past year' • 1 'in past year'.	n/a	YES
Had a hearing test in the past five years	HEARTEST2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'not in the past 5 years' • 1 'hearing test in the past 5 years'.	n/a	YES

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Had a Pap test in the past three years	PAPTEST2	Filtered for GENDER=2 and age>=21	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	0 more than 3 years		
	• 1 in past 3 years.		
Had a mammogram test in the past two years	MAMMO2	Filtered for GENDER=2 and AGE>=40	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	• 1 'in last 2 years'		
	0 'more than 2 years'.		
Last colorectal cancer screening	CCSCREEN17_98	Filtered for AGE>=50 and Age <=75	No
	CCSCREEN17_1		
	CCSCREEN17_2		
	CCSCREEN17_3		
	CCSCREEN17_4		
	CCSCREEN17_99		
Had a flu vaccine in the past year	FLUVACC2	n/a	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	 0 'not in the past year' 		
	 1 'flu vaccine in the past year'. 		

Medication

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Takes at least one medication for mood, anxiety, psychotic disorder and/or behavioral challenges	Totmeds	n/a	YES
	Recoded variable using MEDS15 and MEDBEHAV		
	0 'No meds'		
	1 'At least one kind'.		
Takes medication for mood, anxiety,	meds_mood	n/a	YES
and/or psychotic disorders	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	0 'No meds for mood, anxiety, psychotic'		
	1 'Takes meds for mood, anxiety, psychotic'.		
Number of medications taken for at least one of the following: mood disorders, anxiety, or psychotic disorders	NUMMEDS	n/a	
Takes medication for behavior	meds_behav	n/a	YES
challenges	Recoded variable in which response		
	options are:		
	0 'No meds for behavior challenges'		
	1 'Takes meds for behavior challenges'.		
Number of meds taken for behavior challenges	NUMBEMEDS	n/a	No
Has a behavior plan	BehPlan_yes	n/a	No
Has a behavior plan (among those who take medication for a behavior challenge		Filtered for those with MEDBEHAV=2	No

Wellness

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Exercises or does physical activity at least once per week for 10 minutes or more at a time	PHYSACT_1x Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 yes, at least one time per week	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Exercises or does physical activity at least once per week that makes the muscles in arms, legs, back, and/or chest work hard	0 no. MUSCLEACT_1x Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 yes, at least one time per week 0 no.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Body Mass Index	BMI calculated using formula 703 x weight (lbs) / [height (in)] ²	n/a	No
Uses nicotine or tobacco products	TOBACCO2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'no' • 1 'uses tobacco products'.	n/a	YES

Rights and Respect

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Others (who do not live in the home) let person know before entering home	ENTERHM2	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	1 yes0 sometimes, no.		
Others let person know before entering person's bedroom	ENTERBRM2	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
person's bearoom	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	1 yes0 sometimes, no.		
Can be alone with friends or visitors at home	ALONEGST2 Recoded variable in which response options are:	Filtered for Section 1 (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	• 1 yes • 0 no.		
Has a place to be alone in the home	BEALONE2 Recoded variable in which response	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	options are:		
	1 yes0 no.		
People read mail without asking person	MAILOPEN2	Filtered for Section 1 (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	1 yes0 no.		
Can use phone and internet when wants	USEPHONE2	Filtered for Section 1 (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
	Recoded variable in which response options are:		
	1 yes0 no.		

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Staff treat person with respect	STAF2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 yes • 0 no, sometimes, some staff.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Has attended a self-advocacy group, meeting, conference or event or had the opportunity and chose not to	SELFADVO2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no • 1 had opportunity, yes.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Has a key to the home	KEY2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes 0 No, maybe not sure.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Wants a key to the home if does not have one	PCP_WANTKEY	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	No
Has a cell phone or smartphone	Smartphone2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 Yes • 0 No, maybe not sure.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Wants a cell phone or smartphone	PCP_WANTSMARTPHONE	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No
Reasons does not have a cell phone or smartphone	PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_NA PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_COST PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_NOTALLOW PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_LOST PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_OTHER PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_SPECIFY PCP_NOSMARTPHONE_DK	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	No

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
Can lock bedroom	LOCK2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes 0 No, maybe not sure.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
Has voted in local, state, or federal election, or had the opportunity and chose not to	VOTE2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 1 Yes or had opportunity to register to vote but chose not to • 0 No.	Filtered for Section II (INVL_CR2_15=0)	YES
There are rules about having friends or visitors in the home	VISITRULES2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 No • 1 Yes	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Can stay at home if others in the house go somewhere (if not living alone) NQF "Can stay home when others leave"	PCP_CANSTAY2 Recoded variable in which response options are: 1 Yes 0 No, sometimes	Filtered for Section II and those who do not live in an independent home ((INVL_CR2_15=0) and (TYPEHOME18~=9))	YES
Respect for Personal Space Scale NQF "Respect for Personal Space Scale"	NQF12_RespectSpace	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES

Safety

Table label in body of report	Variable name used in calculation	Notes on how it's filtered in the body of the report	Is it tested for significance?
There is at least one place where the person feels afraid or scared (in home, day program, work, walking in the community, in transport, or other place)	Afraid_yes Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 'No' • 1 'Yes, either in home, day program, work, community, transport, or other'.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES
Has someone to talk to if ever feels afraid or scared	AFRAIDHELP2 Recoded variable in which response options are: • 0 no, maybe • 1 yes.	Filtered for Section I (INVL_CR1_15=0)	YES